
1 
 

Minutes of Faculty Senate, 10/31/16 Meeting 

123 Hathaway Hall 

 
 

Senators 

Ibukun Amusan (Math & Sci) 

Ken Andries (AFE) 

Nancy Capriles (BSS) 

Alice Collins (Nursing)  

Rene Desborde (Business) 

Gary Elliott (WYS) E 

Maheteme Gebremedhin (AFE)  

Caroline Gibson (FIAR)  

Cindy Glass (BSS)  

William Graham (EDU)  

Robert Griffin (FIAR) 

Buddhi Gywali (AFE)  

Dantrea Hampton (Library) E 

Jens Hannemann (Comp Sci)  

Ashok Kumar (at large) 

Vikas Kumar (AQU)  

Li Lu (Math & Sci)  

Rebecca McCoy (Nursing) 

Joe Moffett (LLP) 

Narayanan Rajendran (at large) 

Rita Sharma (Math & Sci) 

Reba Rye (at large) 

Kimberly Sipes (at large) 

Peter Smith (LLP) 

Stephen Ulrich (PUA, CJ, SW)  

Changzheng Wang (at large)  

 

Ex Officio Members and Guests 

Candice Jackson (VP Academic Affairs) 

Bruce Griffis (Math & Sci) 

Mara Merlino (BSS) 

Tierra Freeman (BSS) 

Elgie McFayden (Faculty Regent) 

James Obielodan (Grad Director) 

Donavan Ramon (WYS) 

Dorian S. Wright 

Brandon Moore 

Cynthia Shelton (WYS) 

Fariba Bigdeli-Jahed (Math & Sci) 

David Shabazz (LLP) 

Mara Merlino (BSS) 

James Obielodan (Grad Director) 

Shelia Stuckey (Library) 

Julie Bradley (Kenan Trust Director) 

Jennifer Miles (Distance Education) 

Kirk Pomper (Interim Dir. Land Grant) 

Karen Heavin (Math & Sci) 

John Sedlacek (AFE) 

 

1. Call to Order  

 

The meeting was called to order at 3:11pm.  Fourteen senators were present. 

 

2. Approval of agenda  

 

The agenda was approved unanimously. 

 

3. Approval of minutes         

 

The Minutes for the Senate meeting on 10/10/2016 were passed unanimously as distributed.  

 

 

 

 

 



2 
 

4. Welcome new members  

 



3 
 

Ms. Bradley stressed the value of project-based learning.  The 



4 





6 
 

 

The item passed unanimously. 

 

9. Report of the Budget and Academic Support Committee – Reba Rye    

 

Chair Rye explained that BASC is still gathering recent data to make a resolution on the 

university budget, specifically on instruction at the University.  Last year BASC worked on a 

recommendation for increasing spending on instruction over a three year period and will be 

bringing this item to Senate soon.  Chair Rye reported that President Thompson is open to 

allowing BASC to be involved in budget decisions.  She stressed that BASC’s recommendations 

are intended to improve the university, not to create discord.  

 

Chair Rye described an issue which overlaps with CC.  She explained that she had emailed the 

Senate Executive Committee to explain that her Division Chair, Dr. Shelton, had told her the 

Studio Art program was to move into a teach out phase.  Chair Shelton did not know where these 

instructions originated.  Subsequently, Chair Rye, Division Chair Shelton, and VP Jackson met, 



7 
 

A guest pointed out that since Chair Rye had been told something about her program, it sounds 

like a decision has been made. Regent McFayden noted that part of the context for this situation 

comes from when Beverly Downing was Provost.  Regent McFayden reported that Dr. Downing 

pushed for the elimination of the program, but he had argued at the time that no resources were 

being put into helping it succeed.  He believes the issue has now circled back around.  

  

10. Report of the Professional Concerns Committee – Cindy Glass  

 

Chair Glass noted there has been work on Faculty Handbook by an ad hoc group that includes 

Dr. Jackson, Kim Sipes, Fariba Bigdeli, Ibukun Amusan, Joe Moffett, and herself.  She 

explained the group had recently hit a problem with the resolution passed by the Board in 

November 2014 that gave then-President Burse all power in creating policies.  This calls into 

question any action item coming from Senate over the last couple years and how they relate to 

changes that need to be recorded in the Handbook.  Chair Glass asked Dr. Jackson if this issue 

had been addressed at the recent Board meeting, to which the VP replied that she had taken the 

issue to university legal counsel, but the Board agenda was too full to address the issue.  Chair 

Glass then asked Dr. Jackson if she intended to bring the issue to the Board at the next meeting.  

Dr. Jackson replied that she planned to do so and that the 2014 resolution did not reflect the spirit 

of shared governance.   

 

Chair Glass noted that PCC is still waiting on a response from the VP’s office about pay for 

coordinators, which is uneven across the university.  Dr. Jackson replied that we have had some 

unexpected expenses that have cut into the budget, but she stressed the pay is a priority and that 

she wants it to be fair and equitable across the university. 

 

Chair Glass discussed the presentation by Dr. Wheeler on academic advising at the previous 

Senate meeting.  Dr. Wheeler had sent an email response to the issues on 10/12, but Chair Glass 

was left off the list of recipients.  Chair Glass shared that her sense was that departments could 

opt in to the change in advising structure if they wanted to do so.  President Sipes asked for Dr. 

Wheeler’s email to be sent to her.  She could then disseminate it widely. 

 

Chair Andries noted that faculty in CAFSSS would all being going up for tenure at the same time 

next year and therefore guidelines for their tenure process need to be in the revised Faculty 

Handbook. A senator pointed out the there is a problem with inconsistent faculty standards 

across divisions and that some standards are noted in the Handbook and some are not.   

  

11. Faculty Regent Report     

 

Regent McFayden noted that the Board meeting did not have many action items. He shared that 

Title III Director Christina Leath noted that Title III funds had been used inappropriately in the 

past decade; they should be used for capacity building.  Regent McFayden will be asking for an 

external audit from the State Auditor.  He is concerned with the Title III process for basic 

procurements, and he wants to know how we decide how consultants are paid.  

 

The Board discussed the university reorganization chart, and many questions were asked about 

it.  No action was taken.  



8 


